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The exact site of Fort King George was lost until interested McIntosh
County historians in the mid-1930's located the historic spot and convinced
the State to purchase the property - a 12 acre tract on a high bluff over-
looking the Altamaha River. In 1961 the site was placed in the custody of
the Georgia Historical Commission. It was a tangled swamp without visible
vestiges of the 17th century mission or 18th century fort. Only remnants
of the brick foundations of a sawmill remained. A marble monument honoring
“the English soldiers who died at the Fort and stones marking their graves
were hidden by weeds and grass. After clearing the site of garbage and
undergrowth, a modern museum, designed by Gunn and Meyerhoff, AIA, was bullt
in 1968 to house exhibits interpreting the site's varied history - Indian
occupation, Spanish mission, English fort and sawmilling. Commission
markers have been erected throughout the $ite designating the location of
the mission, fort and sawmilling operations.

From Col. Barnwell's journals we know that the outer defenses of Fert
King George were in the shape of an irreqgular triangle. A banquette, two
féeﬁ‘high and three feet wide, enclosed the parade grounds on all but the
river side with a parapet, 11 feet at the base and 6 feet high, along the
outside of the banquette. A 1l4-foot moat surrounded the fortifications.
The fort was later palisaded and fascines placed along the river side. In-
side the compound was a gabled blockhouse, 26 feet square, constructed of
4-inch cypress planks. On the first floor was the magazine and above it
the gun room, 6 feet off the ground. A lookout window was positioned high
in the gable, 23 feet above ground and providing a view of the river and
marshes. Thatch-roofed barracks for the men and officers and other huts
were also within the fort.

Archaeological investigation in 1952 had revealed the outline of a
17th century Spanish mission and evidence of Indian occupation. In the
late 18th century a large sawmill - operated by impounding tidal water in a
basin on flood tide and sawing with the ebb - was constructed on the site.
A 5-gang, steam sawmill and later a circular sawmill were also constructed
but all that now remain are remnants of the brick foundation.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Georgia's first English settlement, Fort King George, was established
upon a high natural bluff overlooking the northernmost mouth of the
Altamagha River near present day Darien, Georgia. The construction of the
fort was one of the most important single events in early 18th century
America and as such attracted the Georgia Historical Commission to accept
the site. It was the first effort to establish Britain's claim to "the
debatable land" and the first step in a chain of events that brought the
Southeast under the British flag.

In 1720 the English upon the advice of John Barnwell, decided to estab-
lish a Chaln of English military outposts on the Southern frontier. These
forts were meant to thwart any expansionist designs by the French (who had
already stated their plans for the Altamaha) and to protect English holdings
from the Spanish.

" The first occupants of the site were the Guale or Yamasee Indians. Dur-
ing the 17th century the Spanish attempted to convert these tribes by estab-
lishing missions along the coast. Excavations in 1952 brought to light a
great deal of Indian and Spanish artlfacts with evidence indicating that
the site may have also been that of Tolomato, a mission where the Yamasee
rebellion began with the murder of Father Corpa. With the appearance of

the English, the missions were abandoned and many Indians withdrew to

the Carolinas and to Florida.

In 1721, Colonel Barnwell led his scouts to the Altamaha to begin the
construction of Fort King George. Until 1727 the fort was garrisoned by
provincial troups and later by Royal soldiers. During these six years 140
soldiers died from the hardships of fort life. The Spanish were a constant
threat and provisions sent by the Crown were meager and inadequate. During
excavations the skeletons of 81 of these men were found adjacent to the
fort, all laid out with military precision.

In 1726, the fort was destroyed by fire and rebuilt in a makeshift fash-
ion. Dissatisfaction increased until the final removal of the garrison to
Port Royal. Only two lookouts remained until the settlement of Savannah
in 1733. Three years later Oglethorpe sent 177 Scots and their families
to reestablish the military settlement, The hardy Highlanders founded the
present town of Darien and established saw-mill operations which lasted
until the early 20th century. The location was never again used for
military purposes and was largely forgotten until the 1960s when’iqcal J"
interest was rekindled by various writers and historians.
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